CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Adults and Health Committee** held on Monday, 24th June, 2024 in the Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor J Rhodes (Chair) Councillor A Moran (Vice-Chair)

Councillors S Adams, A Burton, J Clowes, S Gardiner, A Kolker, R Moreton, H Moss, J Place, J Snowball, R Vernon and L Wardlaw

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Helen Charlesworth May, Executive Director Adults, Health and Integration Jill Broomhall, Director of Adult Social Care Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health Nikki Wood-Hill, Lead Finance Partner Brian Reed, Head of Democratic Services and Governance Mark Hughes, Senior Manager – Commissioning Keith Evans, Head of Mental Health and Learning Disability Martyn Baggaley – Head of Integrated Commissioning Nikki Bishop, Democratic Services Officer

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE

Maddy Lowry, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Sarah Simpkin - Parent Care Forum representative

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

During consideration of item 5 (Cheshire East Place Mental Health Plan 2024-29 Update), Councillor Gardiner, in the interests of openness and transparency, declared that he had previously been the Chair of the Mental Health Partnership Board.

3 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2024 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION

Councillor Alift Harewood (Macclesfield Town Councillor) addressed the committee in relation to agenda item 5 (Cheshire East Place Mental Health Plan 2024-29 Update). Cllr Harewood stated that she was the Chair of the Cheshire East Mental Health Partnership Board. Cllr Alift spoke in support of the Partnership Board and work undertaken to date.

5 CHESHIRE EAST PLACE MENTAL HEALTH PLAN (2024-2029) UPDATE

The committee received an update on the Cheshire East Place Mental Health Plan (2024-29) and the work of the Cheshire East Mental Health Partnership Board. The committee noted the update provided on the six priorities of the plan.

Officers committed to providing a response to the questions raised by committee members, as summarised below:

- Members requested further information in relation to early intervention and prevention such as talking therapies.
- Members requested further information in relation to the schools programme and if the Mental Health Leads offer would be extended to academies, and what steps were being taken to support small/rural schools across the borough.
- Members requested an update on steps being taken to address long waiting times for neurodiverse diagnosis and assessments more broadly.

Members requested that future updates provide more detailed data/analysis for members to consider including key information such as KPI's and direction of travel.

RESOLVED:

That the update and presentation provided be received and noted.

6 CHESHIRE AND MERSEYSIDE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY ARRANGEMENTS PROTOCOL

The committee considered the report which sought approval to recommend, to Full Council, a revised Protocol for joint health scrutiny arrangements for Cheshire and Merseyside. The committee noted that the protocol and establishment of the Cheshire and Merseyside Integrated Care System Joint Health Scrutiny had previously been agreed by Full Council in July 2022, however changes to the Protocol were required following legislatives changes introduced in January 2024 as summarised within the report. The committee noted that the Protocol required approval from all 9 local authorities that formed the Cheshire and Merseyside joint health scrutiny committee.

RESOLVED (by majority):

That the Adults and Health Committee recommend the revised Joint Health Scrutiny Protocol for joint health scrutiny arrangements for Cheshire and Merseyside (Appendix 1) to Full Council for approval.

7 APPOINTMENTS TO SUB-COMMITTEES, WORKING GROUPS, PANELS, BOARDS AND JOINT COMMITTEES

The Committee considered a report on the appointment of and appointments to sub-committees, working groups, panels, boards and joint committees for the 2024-25 municipal year. A list of nominations submitted by the political groups was circulated at the meeting.

RESOLVED (unanimously):

5That the Adults and Health Committee agrees the appointment of, and appointments to sub-committees, working groups, panels and joint committees for 2024-25 as set out in the report, as follows:

Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board (1 elected member) Councillor Jill Rhodes

Joint Extra Care Housing Management Board (1 elected member) Councillor Arthur Moran

Safer Cheshire East Partnership (3 elected members)

Councillors Martin Edwards, Arthur Moran and James Pratt.

Cheshire East Combating Drugs Partnership (2 elected members) Councillors Sam Corcoran and John Place.

8 LEARNING DISABILITY RESPITE REVIEW

The committee considered the report which sought approval to recommission accommodation-based learning disability respite services based on the findings of a review of the current service provision.

The committee noted that the new service model would include two respite services across the borough that would replace the currently commissioned respite services and the Care4CE provision at Warwick Mews Short Breaks. Assurance was provided that all options available had been fully considered and that the proposed approach would provide the best outcomes for individuals by delivering a more person-centred service that was flexible and meet a wide range of different and complex support needs. It was noted that the proposed new model, and a planned reduction in spot purchasing arrangements, would significantly contribute towards meeting agreed 2023-24 MTFS savings. It was stated that whilst serious consideration would be given to insourcing services in the future,

there was no action that could be taken that would have a direct impact within the next 3 years and that a business case would need to be developed to ensure that the cost of insourcing services would not be higher than commissioning contracts as proposed.

The committee sought assurance that the market had been thoroughly tested. It was confirmed that there was confidence in providers to provide good quality of care within the cost envelope over an initial five-year period.

RESOLVED (by majority):

That the Adults and Health Committee

- Approve the proposed new model for learning disability respite services and for consultation to be progressed with the Trade Unions and staff based on all necessary considerations included within the report.
- 2. Agree to delegate authority to award contracts to providers to deliver commissioned learning disabilities respite services to the Executive Director of Adults, Health and Integration.

9 FINAL OUTTURN 2023/24

The committee received the report which set out the final outturn for 2023-24. Members considered the financial challenges being experienced by the Council and recognised the important activities aimed at minimising the impact on council services. Members noted that the final outturn for the council would be considered by the Finance Sub Committee on 25 June 2024.

Members queried the cost of care packages and noted that this had increased significantly particularly care for individuals transitioning from children's services to adult social care. It was stated that a total of £6.6m was spent each year on supporting 44 individuals under the age of 65 and that £8.2m was spent on 109 individuals in supported living. Members acknowledged the increasing complex demands being placed upon the service with more individuals requiring 1:1 and 2:1 support for up to 24-hours a day to meet physical, behavioural and mental needs. Members agreed that the work being undertaken to review EHCP plans would play a key role in reducing costs.

The committee asked if costs were anticipated to reduce as a result of falling inflation and energy prices, and if the council would seek to challenge providers on business cases put forward against costs charged to the authority. The committee noted that the North-West region was considered an outlier on cost and activity for people with learning disabilities and that a piece of work was underway with the North-West ADASS to analyse the cost drivers and identify any intervention that might be needed.

The committee were pleased to note the steps being taken to reduce the overall number of agency staff across the service and acknowledged the issues the service had faced in recruiting staff in Care4CE, mental health professionals and Occupational Therapists.

RESOLVED (unanimously):

That the Adults and Health Committee

- Note the factors leading to an adverse Net Revenue financial outturn of £11.8m against a revised budget of £138.0m (8.6%), for Adults and Health Committee services.
- 2. Approve the Supplementary Revenue Estimate Requests for Allocation of Additional Grant Funding (Specific Purpose) over £500,000 up to £1,000,000 in Annex 1, Section 2, Table 2.
- 3. Note the contents of Annex 1 and note that any financial mitigation decisions requiring approval will be made in line with relevant delegations.

10 SERVICE BUDGETS 2024/25 (ADULTS & HEALTH COMMITTEE)

The committee considered the report which set out the allocation of the approved budgets for 2024-25 to the Adults and Health committee. The committee thanked officers for introducing RAG ratings to the report which provided the committee with a clear picture of progress on decision-making throughout the municipal year.

The Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for Cheshire East Council for the four years 2024/25 to 2027/28 had been approved by full Council on 27 February 2024. Service committees were being allocated budgets for 2024/25 in line with the approved MTFS. The financial reporting cycle would provide regular updates on progress on delivery of the budget change items, the forecast outturn position, progress on capital schemes, movement on reserves and details of any supplementary estimates and virements.

The committee queried the pressures relating to SEND and noted that a piece of work was underway to ensure that children had a review of their EHCP status prior to transitioning into adult social care. It was stated that the costs of providing care set out within EHCPs for adults was a significant cost to the service, but the authority had a statutory duty to provide this care.

RESOLVED (unanimously):

That the Adults and Health Committee

- 1. Note the decision of the Finance Sub-Committee to allocate the approved revenue and capital budgets, related budget policy changes and earmarked reserves to the Adults and Health Committee, as set out in Appendix A.
- Note the financial reporting timetable for 2024/25 set out in Appendix B as approved at Finance Sub-Committee on 22 March 2024.
- 3. Note progress on the delivery of the MTFS budget policy change items, the RAG ratings and latest forecasts, and to understand the actions to be taken to address any adverse variances from the approved budget.

11 MINUTES OF THE CHESHIRE EAST HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

The committee noted the minutes of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board meeting held on 19 March 2024. Cllr Gardiner stated that it would be helpful if minutes could, going forward, indicate which organisation each individual was representing (for those in attendance and sending apologies).

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board be received and noted.

12 WORK PROGRAMME

The committee considered the Work Programme. The following was noted:

- Update on One You to be provided informally.
- First Financial Review 2024-25 to be considered in September 2024 to include a summary of the direction of travel for Q2.
- Item to be added to the Work Programme which considers how the transformation programme will impact adult social care.
- Informal briefing to be arranged for the committee on care funding and how this works.
- Cllr Kolker asked for consideration to be given to rolling out the opportunity of health screening for staff across Cheshire East. Officers committed to providing a written response.

Cllr Kolker queried if members could undertake visits of Care Homes (as previously done under the committee system of Children's Homes). Officers committed to providing a written response.

- Concerns were raised in relation to the lack of communication between strategic and statutory partners. The committee requested that the partnership working and communications be considered and an item, if appropriate, added to the Work Programme.
- Cllr Burton queried if there was an opportunity for members to get together to discuss local care issues within their ward to share information and key contacts. Officers committed to considering this further and providing a written response.

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 8.04 pm

Councillor J Rhodes (Chair)